
 
 
 
 
 

2019 SENATE EDUCATION COMMITTEE 
 

SB 2186 

 

 

 

 

  



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Education Committee 
Sheyenne River Room, State Capitol 

SB2186 
2/5/2019 

Job # 32170 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Lynn Wolf/ Mary Jo Wocken 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to requiring schools to post information regarding child abuse and neglect. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Written attachments # 1-3 

 
Chairman Schaible: Opened the hearing on SB2186. All senators are present. 
 
Senator Clemens: Introduced and in support of SB2186. See written att #1. (1:00-4:13)  
 
Chairman Schaible: In school common areas, so how many areas obviously the doorway, 
the bulletin board, what would be the minimum requirement for a school to do this because  
“ It shall require” and so what’s the minimum required that shall be required? 
 
Senator Clemens: You know, that probably should already be in a school common area. So 
if you want to change that, not requiring that they post this in every area that would be a 
common area. But a dining area, entrance, rest room, or whatever. So they have it posted 
once in the school in a common area that would be acceptable. 
 
Chairman Schaible: So one area in the school. So what happens if they don’t? What if they 
are not following this? 
 
Senator Clemens: Well there is no penalty involved with this. I guess it is asking the schools 
to do this. I guess it’s like. I am not involved in education like you are, but if a school refuses 
to do something I don’t know what the consequences would be. We’re asking the 
Superintendent that each school would post this. If a school doesn’t want to cooperate or try 
to make things helpful to students, I guess that is I don’t want to get into a penalty part.  
 
Senator Rust: I am going to enter in this delicately, because I don’t want to be perceived 
after asking the question. Having worked in schools and when it gets to accusations of child 
abuse, and you sometimes can have the case where you have a child who was spanked and 
all of a sudden he decides I am going to make this call to someone because that has 
happened to me. All of a sudden you have a parent whose is accused of child abuse and 
they view some of these things as being anti-parent. Any thoughts about that at all? I 
understand that we have some kids in some real desperate situations. I understand for that 
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matter we are mandatory reporters. School people are mandatory reporters. You don’t have 
an option. Because the law currently states that if as a school administrator, teacher or 
counselor I fail to report it, there is a fine that goes with it. I wonder about that one and in that 
process because of us being mandatory reporters, I have been accused of being anti-parent.  
Could it fall under that? 
 
Senator Clemens: It could. There’s 34 or 35 other states that currently have this type of a 
law implemented. That is a legitimate concern. There have been what they call crank calls 
where somebody just makes up a story. They could falsely accuse someone, but of that 
number and the number of cases that are investigated that number is low. I don’t have the 
actual percentage. That’s true in the day we live, we are all subject to a false accusation. It 
could happen here. There is no way to prevent that. But the sponsor of this bill, I would like 
to see that at least there is a number available to the children. This is just requiring that 
schools make the number available. 
 
Senator Oban: I appreciate that you’re trying to make sure that people have access to 
resources and helplines. I guess what came to mind is, so how many now should we add? I 
think it’s fair to make sure that people have access to a suicide helpline, to a sexual assault 
helpline, to an addiction services. I am just wondering if this list is going to grow and end up 
and that’s not necessarily a bad thing. We want people to have access to those resources 
but did you give any other thought to any of those other things that we would want everybody 
to have access too if they were looking for help? 
 
Senator Clemens: If a child called the number that is given by the DPI, given a number to 
the school district, that child could call and they wouldn’t just be limited to child abuse. If they 
had any kind of issue through the number they can get help. Does that answer your question? 
 
Senator Oban: It does, but people specialize in certain issues. So if I were to call a child 
abuse helpline it likely would not, I suppose they could look up for me a suicide prevention 
helpline or a sexual assault helpline or somewhere where I could get addiction and recovery 
services, but, it’s not like a one-stop shop number because people specialize in specific 
issues. So I was just wondering if you had given any thought to any of those other issues? 
 
Senator Clemens: No, I didn’t. 
 
Aimee Copas, Executive Director of the NDCEL spoke in support of SB2186. Written att 
#2. (11:52-13:52) 
 
Mark Jorritsma, Executive Director of Family Policy Alliance of North Dakota, spoke in 
support of SB2186. Written att #3(14:57-18:36). He spoke of the amendments or rewrite if 
you will of this bill. We would certainly support that and we understand what Senator Oban 
was referring too. Our only request would be that on the posters or the resources it would 
say, “if you’re a victim of child abuse or you have a drug problem, it would actually list out the 
various things are, not be a general poster” and then obviously the contact information. 
 
Senator Schaible: Closed the hearing on SB2186. 
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Relating to requiring schools to post information regarding child abuse and neglect. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Schaible opened the Senate Education Committee for discussion of SB2186. All 
senators are present. 
 
Chairman Schaible: The child abuse act and then there was another one about “shall require 
each school to post at eye level”. Committee what are your wishes for discussion? I feel for 
the sentiments of the Senator but I don’t think requiring a school to post at eye level. I think 
schools are trying to do what’s correct and appropriate and actually have a sincere desire to 
get the message across. I don’t feel we need a law that tells us how this should be done. I 
think they can do that locally. I know what the intentions are, but I don’t see this bill as helping 
the problem. 
 
Senator Oban: I will move a do not pass on SB2186. 
  
Senator Fors:  2nd 
 
Senator Schaible: We have a motion and a 2nd on SB2186. Any other discussion? 
 
Senator Rust: I kind of inclined to go to the opposite way on that one. I understand that 
maybe what we should do is you should have lots of signs up for people to report. However, 
is I think if you put all those on one sign it gets lost because it’s too much. Yet, I do agree 
with the sponsor of the bill that unfortunately for some kids’ home is not a safe place. It’s sad 
but it’s true. So I was a little constricted on that one. 
 
Senator Fors: Why do you have to put everything on one side? 
Senator Rust: That’s just we would simplify the tape. 
Senator Fors: I mean you could have a dozen, of them around the corner right, any place 
you want too.  
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Senator Rust: This one does not put all of them in one sign, that was a suggestion. This one 
would be a separate sign. So your right you could do that. 
Senator Schaible: If a school feels that that is necessary now, could they not do that now? 
Do you feel that there’s any school out there that is not doing something they feel would 
help? I feel that schools are trying to do everything they can to and do what they’re doing 
and we don’t need a law that says you need to put a sign at eye level. I think they are trying 
to get their message across and that’s what I am getting at. 
 
Senator Elkin: Even at the present time I walk into my own school which is Richardson-
Taylor, and they’ve got them posted. They’ve got health hotlines, so much junk on the wall, 
you can’t hardly see it. It’s not junk, not necessarily, there is so much stuff out there, but I 
see these help hotlines. Are students using them? I don’t know if they are or not. There is 
just a lot of stuff that’s being posted out there right now.  
 
Senator Rust: I am a little bit wishy washy as you can tell because I to wonder about the 
amount of stuff that we have posted. When I look at this bill, it’s kind of and I think it is a really 
good idea so it forces everybody to do something. I feel both ways here.  
 
Senator Elkin: I do like the bill. I like everything about it. But I think it is already being done.  
 
Senator Schaible: I agree. I believe schools are trying to do the right thing. They are trying 
to do what they can. I don’t see this as solving a problem. First of all, there is no who is going 
to check to make sure that it is done, second thing is, what’s the penalty if they don’t get it 
done? That’s kind of like, okay now. I don’t see it working as the way they intended. 
 
Senator Davison: So before Senator Rust was, I was going to quietly vote against the do 
not pass thing and not say too much about it, and just move on, but I do think it is a good 
idea. I was looking to see was there or did the school boards or did NDCEL have any 
testimony. I can’t remember if they had any suggestions. I know we talked about that we 
were going to put “a school commons area” instead of areas. 
 
Senator Schaible: There is an amendment NDCEL.  
 
Senator Oban: If the committee is comfortable with that I am happy to have that drafted. It 
is the amendment from NDCL. The amendment is way better. I can have an amendment 
drafted to really get Senator Rust on my side, and say that the school must report where 
when they posted it, how high it was located. I am not joking around about the subject. I do 
think that the amendment suggested by NDCEL is much more encompassing. So, if that’s 
where people feel more comfortable, I am fine with that. I am not comfortable with this. 
 
Senator Schaible: No I am not comfortable the way the bill is. I don’t have a problem with 
the amendment, it is just that why do we need the amendment. Shouldn’t they be doing that 
anyway? That’s the whole point. Do we need to explain their job to them?  
 
Senator Elkin: I don’t think that NDCEL’s, not that they didn’t try on the amendment but it 
kind of takes away the purpose of some of what Senator Clemens is trying to get too a little 
bit, I think. He specifically talks about it being eye level, and he’s targeting an audience and 
he’s got a vision in his mind of how he believes this should happen. It gets you off the hook. 
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Senator Rust: Well, because I think there is lots of other issues that are out there. I am it’s 
not just child abuse. There are lots of other things that maybe we should be posting. Instead 
of having 20 of them, maybe we just have one now.  
 
Senator Elkin: You work within the community of educators. Are there plenty of signage 
there. As a matter of fact, there is probably too much. So, how do you strain between what 
should be there and what shouldn’t be there?  
 
Senator Oban: That’s going to differ from school to school even within one district. You know 
we’ve got schools now in Bismarck that almost look like the entry way of a clinic. I mean there 
are literally racks with brochures of every single sort of interest or issue with resources, with 
a helpline. I think that is more than appropriate and so that’s why I guess I just have a hard 
time saying for one issue which of course is very serious and we all care about. You know to 
dictate how and where that this specific one should be posted I just think is a little bit overkill. 
 
Senator Rust: I see you could have something about suicide on there. You could have 
something about drug abuse. I mean I think there is a number of issues that maybe when I 
think of child abuse, it is a horrendous thing when it happens. But I think you could. I think 
there is a number of pertinent issues there that you could put on there and maybe then be 
able to take off a few others that might be already posted. You would have that notification 
for kids. 
 
Senator Schaible: It was like our first bill that we heard today 2149. You know we’re talking 
safe and healthy schools. It’s a different topic, but it is the same issue. It’s about protecting 
our kids and keeping them safe and able to learn. But like it says, we keep carving out every 
little specific area that and in targeting that I think really it should be a coordinated approach 
to how we keep our kids safe and what’s the best way to notify them and help them provide 
services.  
 
Senator Rust: Just for I am going to vote against the do not pass. Okay. Just so you know 
that in case other people are wondering. I think we should try to make this better. I think we 
have an opportunity to. 
 
Senator Oban: I would withdraw my do not pass recommendation so that we can make an 
amendment. I would much prefer to go that route to than to have a split committee vote that 
gives some weird appearance that some of us are cool with child abuse and some of us 
aren’t. I mean really that’s why you guys are doing this.  
 
Senator Fors: I withdraw my 2nd.  
 
Senator Schaible: Now we have SB2186 before us again without any. 
 
Senator Rust: If you like somebody to bring the amendment to you I would be willing to go 
after it. 
 
Senator Schaible: We got to get that done to LC so we have the amendment by tomorrow.  
Other discussion on 2186.  
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Senator Marcellais: In addition to the posters I think we should look at a newsletter to the 
parents or something with those numbers. In our school they have orientation at the 
beginning of the year, and that should be shared not only with the parents but also with the 
students.  
 
Senator Rust: I think it is a good idea, Senator Marcellais, although I think if you post it a lot 
of parents are going to be coming into that building. We see that. I don’t know that the 
newsletter would be necessary because parents frequent our buildings often and I think if 
you have it in a conspicuous place not. If the kids will find it, the parents will find it.  
 
Senator Schaible: I mean that I don’t mind the idea. I think they get an orientation at the 
beginning of the year, there’s a handbook and a parent handbook that they get, so I mean if 
we put it in that which I am sure that they do. It’s the best a school can do. So we will hold 
this until we see the amendment.  
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Relating to requiring schools to post information regarding child abuse and neglect. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Written att. #1- amendment 

 
Chairman Schaible called the Senate Education Committee for discussion and vote on 
SB2186. All senators are present. 
 
Chairman Schaible: We have several amendments to go out. We’ll do 2186. 
 
Senator Rust: passed out the amendment. Written attachment #1-amendment. 
 
Senator Rust: You have before you the amendment 19.0714.02001 and aside from kind of 
changing that stuff at the top of the bill, it reads like “A bill for an Act to create and enact a 
new section to chapter 15.1-19 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to providing 
schools with information regarding school safety and awareness issues to be posted in 
school common areas”. Go down into line 7, instead of being child abuse, neglect it will be 
‘school safety and awareness’ information and resources in schools. Then the last part it will 
say ‘the superintendent of public instruction shall in coordination with other relevant state 
agencies, create information, resources, and helplines for students regarding appropriate 
school safety and awareness issues. The superintendent shall disseminate the information, 
resources, and helplines to schools to be posted in school common areas’.  
 
Senator Schaible: This is the Christmas tree version of what you just said.  
 
Senator Rust: I would move amendment 19.0714.02001. 
  
Senator Marcellais: 2nd 
 
Roll call vote: 6 Yea, 1 No 0 Absent 
 
Senator Schaible: We have before us SB2186 as amended, what are your wishes? 
 
Senator Rust: I would move do pass on SB2186 as amended 
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Senator Marcellais- 2nd 
 
Roll call vote: 7 Yes 0 No 0 Absent 
 
Carrier: Senator Rust 
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A bill relating to requiring schools to post information regarding child abuse and neglect 
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Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Opened the hearing 
 
Sen. David Clemens:  This bill was introduced in the Senate relating to child sexual abuse 
notifications that would be posted in the public schools.  That original version also listed the 
size of the printing, etc., to make it very discernable for the students to get the information on 
child sexual abuse.  The bill before you has been amended.  If approved, this bill would 
include any type of abuse, not just specific to child sexual abuse, but to alcohol, drug, child 
abuse issues.  The bill is relating to providing schools with information regarding school safety 
and awareness issues to be posted in school common areas.  Starting with line 7 on page 1, 
school safety and awareness information and resources in schools.  The superintendent of 
public instruction, in coordination with other relevant state agencies, shall create information, 
resources, and helplines for students regarding appropriate school safety and awareness 
issues.  The superintendent shall disseminate the information, resources, and helplines to 
schools to be posted in school common areas.  With that, I would ask that you would give 
this a favorable consideration. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any questions?  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Do you see this as quite involved? When looking to see if there was 
a fiscal note, I saw that it only involved posters in schools in common areas.  If that is the 
case, there would probably be a very deminimis fiscal note if there were any at all. 
 
Sen. David Clemens:  It was understood that the Superintendent of Public Instruction would 
email each public school with an attached file with a poster or the information and each school 
would print this out on their printer and there would be no cost involved with it. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any additional questions from the committee?  
This is quite similar to a bill we passed as well that you have on your side now.  Additional 
support? 
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Russ Ziegler, NDCEL: (Attachment 1) 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Continuing in support of SB 2186? Any 
opposition?   Any neutral testimony? 
 
Robin Lang, Asst. Director, Office of Safe and Healthy Schools, DPI (Attachment 2):   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any questions from the committee? 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:   Did you hear the testimony of Sen. Clemens who said this is all about 
posters in common areas?  This isn’t about creating hotlines or helplines or other things you 
reference in your testimony. 
  
Robin Lang:  I did hear that.  The way it was written it wasn’t clear that it would be at 
reference helplines and information.  If it was specific to posters and things like that it puts a 
different spin on the bill.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Did you provide this testimony on the Senate side prior to any 
amendments or was this testimony on the bill as we see it? 
 
Robin Lang:  I was assigned the bill this morning as we have a staff member out sick.  It 
was not provided on the original side because there was a late amendment.  This was not 
heard by the original committee. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Was there any testimony on the senate side? 
 
Robin Lang:  No. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional questions?  
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  Have you ever considered putting posters in schools to address 
this, and if so, why?  Do these methods work better? 
 
Robin Lang:  In this issue, for school safety it encompasses a lot.  The original intent of the 
bill was child abuse and neglect; we don’t create those posters but we certainly disseminate 
for the group that does create those and then it is up to local control for schools to post that 
wherever they see necessary.   
 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  Is there one helpline number statewide or does every school system 
develop their own? 
 
Robin Lang:   That again is up to local control.  It depends on how that local board feels. 
 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  How would DPI disseminate a poster style flyer for each of the schools 
in the state.  Do you have a way of communicating with each of the schools to decide what 
number you are supposed to put on there? 
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Robin Lang:  That’s where it gets really complicated with local control and all these entities 
providing information to schools.  There is not one poster that would encompass all of that. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional questions? 
 
Rep. Andrew Marschall:  Would it be possible to create a poster and where the number is, 
just leave it blank.  When it is disseminated to all those schools they can put whatever number 
they want in there.  
 
Robin Lang:  That is one thought, but clarity on what that poster would be; it is a school 
safety issue.  So, is it on bullying, is it on child sexual abuse?  I think we just need some 
clarity on the amendment.  That could be an option but it may not be. 
 
Rep. Andrew Marschall: In my business I have to have an OSHA placard which gives all 
the information for the state of North Dakota except where phone numbers are listed at the 
bottom, it just gives a blank line.  I could envision DPI coming up with a poster but determining 
what needs to be on that poster and leaving that part of the poster blank.  Would that be a 
possibility? 
 
Robin Lang:   I don’t think that would be the best possibility, but it may work.  I think that 
other agencies and like text-a-tip for bullying, etc., those organizations have their own posters 
that they distribute to schools.  They would like theirs hung versus the one we would 
distribute.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:   Any further questions?  Any neutral testimony?  
Seeing none, we will close the hearing. 
 
 
Mark Jorritsma (Attachment 3) – handed out/no verbal testimony 
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Chairman Owens:  Rep. Strinden, would you like to explain your amendment?  
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  After the bill hearing, it changed the intent of Sen. Clemens’ bill.  
Janice Bundas was here testifying on behalf of another bill that was similar.  It was passed 
here and I do know that it did die in the Senate.  She travelled here from Texas and if you 
recall from her testimony which was based on her own experience as a child where she was 
sexually abused by her family members and her intent behind the bill and doing this 
nationwide – her feeling is that if she would have seen this type of poster in her school she 
would have been able to tell somebody about the abuse.  That is the motivation behind her 
coming to visit all the states in the union. 
 
It is simply providing a poster for schools to post.  It has the National Child Abuse Hotline 
number and it would be easier for students that are younger to report abuse that is happening 
to them.  The bill amended in the Senate that made the language relating to school safety 
and awareness also provided that the Department of Public Instruction would produce hotline 
numbers and I don’t know that it would be feasible to do so.  I ask for an amendment to 
change the language back to the original intent of the bill’s sponsor and if the committee is 
open to that we can debate the bill on that merit. 
 
Chairman Owens:  I’m curious as to whether the poster is going to make a difference after 
we had testimony from the young lady who tried to commit suicide and told multiple people 
of her intentions and no one took notice as to intervention on her behalf.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  When you’re requiring DPI to send that out, one 
of our associations or school boards, etc., they would do that.  I don’ t think we would have 
to put that in code.  If we put it in code, would we know if it would be done, would we have 
someone checking if the posters are posted.  What would be the penalty if they weren’t 
posted?  I think this could be done by just asking one of the agencies or associations to 
disseminate them.  That is my thought on it.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further discussion? 
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Rep. Hoverson:  Did we ever get an answer on the wording on line 9 – ‘shall create 
information, resources, and helplines’ ….., did we ever discuss, are we asking DPI to create 
a helpline or just make aware?   
 
Chairman Owens:  That’s what the current bill does, it requires them to create a helpline. 
The amendment does take that out.   
 
Representative Denton Zubke:  Although I do agree with Rep. Schreiber-Beck, I don’t see 
the harm in sending the posters out and requiring the schools to put them up.  If they don’t, 
they don’t.  You see the same thing with Worker’s Comp. posters; they are required to post 
them but no one goes around to check to see if they do post them. If you do become subject 
to an audit, they make look for things like that.  Beyond that, the federal government requires 
a lot of posters to be put up and a lot of places don’t put them up.  If this helps at least one 
student, then it’s worth the effort of what is going in to this.  If thirty-five other states are doing 
it, maybe it will become part of some national program.  I would be in favor of these 
amendments. 
 
Chairman Owens:  We don’t have poster police running around on the federal requirements 
for all employment, wages, worker’s rights, etc., but one complaint happens and they come 
in and look and they fine you. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  I don’t think there will be an issue with putting posters up, because 
in my experience someone will find a way to get the contract for these posters.  They will 
make the posters and it will have no effect, or may save one life, but what we don’t consider 
enough is using these resources for the next best thing.  Maybe the schools have an idea of 
helping students understand how to get help.  I think we should let the schools decide this 
instead of mandating a particular form of information. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson: I’d like to move the amendments. 
 
Rep. Andrew Marschall:  I’ll second it. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any discussion? 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  I think this is too specific.  I don’t think we need to say what eye 
level the poster needs to be at and how far away a person needs to see the poster.  That is 
a bit of overkill.  I’m not against the amendment but on page 1, line 9, where it says to post 
at an average students eye level, that’s pretty specific.  On page 1, line 11, ‘helpline numbers 
must be easily discernible from a distance of ten feet’, I think we don’t have to be that specific 
in anything on the books.  That part of the amendment I would prefer not to be that specific. 
 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  From a law enforcement perspective and someone who has worked 
sexual abuse crimes against young children, the ten feet away thing I can totally understand.  
I questioned the eye level too, but the ten feet away portion I can understand.  Kids are afraid 
to let anybody close to them that they think may say something or find out what is going on 
in their personal life.  Anything we can do that allows a child to indiscriminately find out 
information is a good thing in my view. 
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Rep. Michelle Strinden:  One thing about this helpline number is that this is the National 
Child Abuse Hotline number and it is staffed 24/7 by licensed counselors who are able to 
help the child with their problem.  Certain hotline numbers you call in North Dakota you may 
get an answering machine, finding people to help you by calling a phone number is not an 
easy thing.  I think it would be worthwhile to provide a hotline number. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Rep. Hoverson was asking regarding the original bill asking them to 
create a hotline.  It better have an appropriation, because you will need 4.7 full-time 
individuals to operate a 24/7 hotline weekly.   Any further discussion? 
 
A Voice Vote was taken with the motion carrying. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:   I have another amendment to offer.  This 
provides the opportunity to put back a bill that was killed in the Senate and was rather 
important.  HB 1262 was brought forward by Rep. Satrom that dealt with the Attorney General 
needing some permission to use money if they would actually receive the money and how to 
use those funds.  That Section 2 in its entirety is that bill.  Rep. Satrom recognized that the 
bill had been killed on the Senate side and asked that it be put back in some place.  I believe 
that the Senate is in agreement.  They didn’t get a response from the Attorney General’s 
office when they asked. 
 
Representative Denton Zubke:  Do you have any ideas specifically why the Senate killed 
the bill and does that endanger the bill that we are looking at here? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  They were looking for a response from the 
Attorney General’s Office, they didn’t call them back in time, so they just killed the bill. 
 
Chairman Owens:  I believe that the bill didn’t actually require anything and they didn’t see 
any purpose over and above what we were doing already and they didn’t understand that the 
last two paragraphs enabled the Attorney General to accept the money and do something 
with it.  That’s why he was trying to get a response to verify that with the Attorney General.  
By the time he talked to him, the vote was done. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  Have we heard from the Attorney General’s Office?  It sounds like 
they need it, but I looked up the program this was talking about and they are already doing it 
with federal funds.  I don’t know how they can need this if they are doing it right now without 
it.   
 
Chairman Owens:  When we voted it out, we had heard from the Attorney General at the 
time that this would help them.  That’s why we amended it to put that in there, back when we 
heard it with the house bill that we sent over.  They didn’t hear back from the Attorney General 
before they voted on it. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Rep. Guggisberg, we sent her an email that had 
the actual response from the Attorney General’s office, as I was in question as well.  An email 
was sent out before we voted on that bill.   
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Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  I think we have two parts of the bill that may or may not help, but I 
will probably vote for it so we can get it to conference committee.  There are still a lot of 
questions. 
 
Chairman Owens:  What was the house bill number? 
  
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  It was HB 1262. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Could we get the testimony from HB 1262 that is from the Attorney 
General? 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  I make a motion to move the amendment. 
 
Representative Denton Zubke:  Seconded. 
 
A Voice Vote was taken with the motion carrying. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I have testimony from Molly Goebel and she is 
responding to Rep. Satrom because I had asked him for more information.  The response 
says, “Attached are the proposed amendments we discussed briefly yesterday which would 
allow us to pursue federal funding to expand and help increase the awareness and 
effectiveness of Project Standup.  If this is agreeable, Legislative Council can get it cleaned 
up and finalized for you.  If you have any questions or changes, I’m happy to help.”   
 
We amended HB 1262 to these and then passed it with these in it.  That was the response 
from the Attorney General’s office. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Are there any further questions?  We have a motion before us for an 
amendment to SB 2186 as amended made by Rep. Guggisberg, seconded by Rep. Zubke.  
A Voice Vote was taken with the motion carrying. 
 
Representative Denton Zubke:  I’ll recommend a Do Pass on SB 2186 as amended. 
 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert:   Seconded. 
 
A Roll Call Vote was taken:  Yes  13, No  0, Absent  1.  A Do Pass as amended carried 
with Rep. Strinden carrying SB 2186. 
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Chairman Owens:  SB 2186 is back for us to reconsider.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I move to reconsider SB 2136.  
 
Rep. Longmuir:  Seconded.  
 
A Voice Vote was taken and the motion carried to reconsider SB 2136. . 
 
Chairman Owens:  We have in front of us SB 2186. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I’d like to make a Motion to Amend SB 2186.  
In line 1, strike after chapter to the end of the line.  On line 2, strike chapter and relating to 
requiring schools to post, line 3 information regarding child abuse, neglect, and – those are 
all struck, and strike entirely section 1, relabel section 2 as section 1.  That is the entire 
amendment.  
 
Chairman Owens:  Is there a second?   
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:   Seconded.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Discussion?  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I’ve been in communication with Human Services 
- the numbers that were proposed to be utilized; neither one of those numbers would be as 
effective as we had hoped they would be.  The 211 number is just related to a suicide line 
and the other number would be a two-step process in order to get to where a student in a 
school would need to get to.  Therefore, it was recommended through Human Services and 
Child Protection that those numbers not be utilized.  There will be a number in about two 
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years in North Dakota so we do have an opportunity which I think will be integrated by that 
time.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further discussion from the committee? 
 
A Roll Call Vote was taken to adopt amendment. Yes  14,  No  0, Absent  0.   Motion carries 
to amend SB 2186.  
 
Chairman Owens:  We have an amended bill in front of us.  What is the committee’s 
pleasure? 
  
Rep. Brandy Pyle:  I recommend a Do Pass for SB 2186 as Amended. 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  Seconded.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any discussion?  Seeing none.  
 
A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes  14, No  0, Absent  0.   A Do Pass as Amended on SB 
2136 carries.   
 
Rep. Strinden:  will carry SB 2186. 
 
Hearing closed.  
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Chairman Rust: calls the Conference Committee to order on SB 2186. All members were 
present.  
 
Representative Heinert: As we were reviewing this bill on the House Education side, the 
word in the bill on line 9, the word “helplines” was looked upon and we did some research on 
helplines for students. We determined that that’s probably a telephone line system that we 
were looking for and a phone number to put up for students to call in common areas. In our 
research, we found that there’s really no helpline in the state for students that would help 
them in anything that we’re talking about such as bullying, suicides, school activities, etc. 
With that knowledge, we started doing some additional research, Representatives Satrom 
and Strinden did extreme amount of research, worked with the state health department and 
the Attorney General’s office and wrote the amendments as you see them and the proposed 
House amended bill. It was determined that there will probably be some form of a helpline, 
hopefully within a year, that we can actually put out into the schools. A phone number that 
will be answered and will be directly answered, not indirectly answered. That was another 
position we had that was troubling for us, we didn’t want a student to call in and get referred 
to another number or another time. We were afraid, when we were trying to think like a 
15,16,17-year-old, which is hard to do, and trying to think if they would call back. We had a 
huge concern that if they made the determination to call, and they did not receive the 
assistance they needed, we were wondering would they call back? And it scared us if they 
got deferred once or a couple times, whether they would call back again or not. And so they 
may just continue to put up with the bullying. In light of that, a lot of research was done. The 
information was obtained that there is a helpline thought process in the works, hopefully 
within one year, that will be developed and put out there. We also found out that there could 
be some grants available that the attorney general could receive. So we kind of changed it 
from superintendent of public instructions under to the attorney general’s office, it gave the 
AG the authority to receive grants, to obtain funds, contributions, several areas to obtain 
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money to look at this and to tailor a statewide program. There already are a couple of 
programs running in other states that are working towards this end. So we just tried to create 
an authorization to go through the AG’s office and to keep this moving forward, but when we 
roll it out to students, we wanted to make sure we were rolling out something that was actually 
there.  
 
Chairman Rust: One of the things, when we got the do not concur, this bill is exactly the 
same as HB 1262, which was defeated in the Senate by a vote of 2-42 on March 7th. There 
isn’t a deviation of a word in it, and the things we noticed about this bill, and the reason it 
went down is because the bill doesn’t do anything. If you look at item 1, it says the AG shall 
encourage. Shall does nothing. Item 2 may, again, does nothing. Number 4, the AG may 
seek, that really does nothing again. Item 5 was may adopt, that doesn’t do anything either. 
For that matter, our committee chairman talked to the AG, and he didn’t seem overly 
enthusiastic about it. Those are the reasons why it went down. I’m not sure if it went down 
that it won’t have the same fate. I’m afraid that if we were to accede to your amendments, 
that this bill was going to get killed. As we looked at the original bill, you’ll notice that it says 
superintendent shall create and shall disseminate, in both cases it will do something. The 
reason why we decided to go with the superintendent, the 3000 version is amended from the 
original bill, the thinking was it started out as the superintendent shall require each school to 
post at an average student eye level in a student commons area, information, resources, and 
help lines, with regard to child abuse and neglect. When it got to the Senate, we decided that 
we needed more information on that sheet than just child abuse. There are so many other 
things that probably could be on that posting, and we felt that if the superintendent in 
coordination with other relevant agencies, could create information that would be available 
for students to call. When we watch television we see these helplines to call and that was the 
reason we did what we did. 
 
Representative Heinert: We received testimony from Robin Lang, Assistant director of the 
North Dakota Department of Public Instruction, and she made a comment that the 
department of Public Instructions, whether it is through collaboration work or not, does not 
have the resources to create helplines. And in the event the bill passes, we would see clarity 
on school safety and awareness issues as written in this bill. That encouraged us to look us 
elsewhere, too. The phone line that we did find was a suicide prevention phone line but that 
was not answered 24 hours a day. We actually called it, Representative Strinden called it 
and it was a referral. It went to some other state and then they referred her to somebody 
within the state the next morning. And then your comment about the AG not seeming very 
enthusiastic kind of took me off guard because I was at a press conference last August in 
Minot with the AG, in my former career with the South Dakota plan and the North Dakota 
sheriff’s and deputies association, trying to bring in a texting situation for students across the 
state in the rural school systems, where they could text a number. South Dakota has it and 
we were trying to implement that in North Dakota and the AG came, voluntarily spoke at the 
news conference, and was very supportive of that. So it took me off guard when you said 
that, because he seemed very enthusiastic to help students on that day.   
 
Chairman Rust: That’s the information that we had. I had not contacted him, and I would 
like to. I’m just concerned that if we have the identical bill, go through the Senate and go 
down 2-42 that the same thing will happen and end up with a bill that gets killed. Where do 
we go from here?  
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Representative Hager: My understanding was that the AG came to us and said that for them 
to secure additional funding, they felt they needed this somewhere in our code to show what 
we were doing. So they came back to us and said that we needed something from the AG 
that said we’re tackling the problems associated with school crises. I remembered us talking 
about where those posters were going to be and I sure thought we had left something that 
had that in.  
 
Chairman Rust: The bill was proposed by a member that isn’t on our education committee, 
but the individual, in their testimony was really concerned about child abuse and neglect and 
in particular felt that unfortunately, there are some families out there where it isn’t a safe 
place to be. And we know that, sometimes in America some of the least safe places to be is 
at home. It’s a sad commentary on where some parts of our society had gone. And the 
individual thought proposed this said he felt that it was a case where students needed to 
know that there was someplace that they could call for some help and someone to intervene, 
because sometimes teachers and administrators don’t know if there was a number to call in 
regard to child abuse and neglect, the student could call and get help out of a desperate 
situation. And then we decided that maybe there was more than just child abuse and neglect 
that we could do and we felt that Department of Public Instruction could, I think we were 
asking them to set up a helpline and come up with places that had lines, contact places, 
where a student could actually call. It’s amazing how many kids have cell phones. So that 
was the intent of the bill, so the House version changed the intent considerably. 
 
Representative Hoverson: I got a call from the woman in Texas, did you guys? So, I don’t 
know if she was behind the bill or what but no matter. I said I’m surprised there already isn’t 
something in place and her understanding was, and this includes North Dakota, that really 
all there is right now, is 911 which is prohibitive for a student somewhat. It’s not a very 
attractive thing to call. Then going to a teacher or administrator, and this is a woman whose 
story was pretty horrendous. Does that sound accurate to you that there isn’t anything? And, 
if there isn’t, is an out of state hotline sufficient to meet the intent of this bill? Are we really 
after something that’s in state? 
 
Chairman Rust: In TV, often there are public service announcements or something of that 
nature. And they say if you’re experiencing this, call this number. It seems to me that there 
are a number of places out there for someone to call. We’ve felt that we didn’t have that 
expertise within the department of Public Instruction, and with their coordination with other 
agencies, that they could come up with good numbers to call. If it boils down to just child 
abuse, that’s okay. But if there are others like for suicide prevention, if there are those that 
are out there that can be placed on one nice concise sheet, as opposed to multiple, for a 
student to call, it would be better for that kid that’s not willing to walk to a counselor. That can 
be threatening, going to someone can be threatening, a phone call, even though it’s a little 
impersonal, can be less threatening. That was the idea. 
 
Representative Hoverson: This woman did indicate that if we needed one phone number, 
she said that there was one that existed but I don’t think it’s a North Dakota phone number 
and I didn’t know if that would be sufficient. 
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Chairman Rust: I would think that social services in North Dakota, there must be numbers 
to call. 
 
Representative Hager: I’m not sure if its currently widespread but there’s a 211 number. In 
Fargo, we’re lucky with the first link association that there is a number available for people. 
But I think that some of the concern was some of the more rural, western parts of the state 
that they may not have access to that number, or awareness of what resources are available 
in Williston or whatever.  
 
Chairman Rust: I think we were thinking a state number to call, which then could refer to a 
resource in their area, like a local county services or something like that. I don’t think we were 
anticipating a national hotline, because that’s too far. It would have to be either local or 
statewide that could refer back to a local. Cause we know that with regard to child abuse, 
you have certain people who are mandatory reporters. And if they do not, there are severe 
consequences for not reporting. And if people are reporting to someone it would seem to me 
that there would have to be some number to call, and we know that in today’s world, we have 
a number of grandparents that are raising kids and in fact there is a real alarm from some 
people who are wondering when these grandparents die off, and they will, who is going to be 
the next link for somebody to go to. And I’m not trying to be judgmental, but you do have 
maybe one or both parents that are not the safest people to be around or who are so, 
probably through addiction of one kind or another, almost detached from everyone’s lives, 
especially their children. For that matter, probably doing dangerous things to their children. 
So that idea was in case that child didn’t feel comfortable going to a teacher or a counselor 
or something, that maybe a number on the wall would be a good place to start.  
 
Representative Heinert: I 100% agree with you. The intent of the House side was to find 
one number for a child or a student to call. That is not available right now in the state, but it 
is in the process of being developed. We’re about a year, or a little bit better away from that. 
As soon as that happens, that should and hopefully will change the scope of this whole 
thought process that both houses have going for them right now. So that would be the ideal 
situation if we were there, but it’s not yet. And I think we all want it to be there, the people 
that are working for that know that we want it to be there. I’m hoping it stays in the priority 
and this discussion will continue that priority. 
 
Representative Hager: The original bill that went to the Senate was talking about child abuse 
neglect information. Those words aren’t in either of these pages here in front of us. We 
suddenly have appropriate school safety and awareness issues. That is an entirely different 
thing than home issues of child abuse. Now to me it sounds like a whistleblower, if you think 
a door is left open. If a lay person looks at this, I don’t see how we’re getting to the point of 
child abuse/neglect information anymore, from what we’ve put into wording and how this 
would be read by people. 
 
Chairman Rust: Are you stating that maybe we need to restate if we were going to go with 
the 03000 version, that we maybe need to restate that appropriate school safety and 
awareness issues?  
 
Representative Hager: I don’t feel that that term is the same as the original intent of the bill 
sponsors. How would this be interpreted by anybody reading this? Because to me that’s more 
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school safety awareness issues in the building and not at home. That’s something we should 
think through.  
 
Chairman Rust: We’ll get from school to student? I’m not saying just one word change.  
 
Representative Hager: Right.  
 
Representative Hoverson: Would it help if may was changed to shall in the amended 
version? And left the if there?  
 
Chairman Rust: Which one? 
 
Representative Hoverson: Well all the ones that you mentioned when you said the bill 
doesn’t do anything because of line 11 and line 18. If they were shall but the if was still there, 
so it was not an unfunded mandate.  
 
Chairman Rust: When we went through HB 1262, which was identical to the 5000 version, 
while we thought there were some good things to talk about, we didn’t feel that the bill did 
anything. There are lots of things that people could encourage us to do.   
 
Representative Hoverson: That was the intent of my question, if we did make it so that it 
wasn’t just an encouragement but it was a shall. I’m just curious if that’s where the rub is?  
 
Chairman Rust: I think part of it had to do with at the 1 level, at the 5000 level in HB 1262, 
it’s at the very top of the chain. The original intent was at the bottom of the thing for the 
grassroots person to see something that they may be able to do as opposed to you’ve got 
something on top that maybe, may be a long time until it gets down to this level. The one was 
more you’ve got somebody in a desperate situation, doesn’t know what to do, may pick up a 
phone and call someone. That might be helpful. 
 
Representative Heinert: I would like to go back and research HB 1262 and take a look at 
that, and maybe even have a conversation with the AG.  
 
Chairman Rust: I would like to have a conversation with both the AG and the 
Superintendent. For that matter, we can either do it separately or together.  
 
Senator Fors: We need to make this easy, not complicated. When that child sees that 
number on that board, it can’t be um yeah, this is going to be reported to the AG. There needs 
to be a number there that you can call and probably get whomever on that line, but it can’t 
be a difficult thing or a threatening thing. I don’t like any of this except for the original one, 
which made it very very simple to report abuse. That’s just an 8 by 11 number on a piece of 
paper, otherwise forget it.  
 
Chairman Rust: What we’re wondering about, when we talked about it as a committee was, 
should this bill be narrowed to just that one item or could it be for suicide, drug prevention? 
Do we want to just narrow it to child abuse? 
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Senator Fors: If we start with child abuse, we’re tasking the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction, she can broaden it, right? The one number should be the one number to go to. 
 
Chairman Rust: Our thinking that there isn’t a one number, that there probably will be 
different ones for suicide and different ones for child abuse, etc. 
 
Representative Heinert: The intent is that we have one number and they can call in. Our 
concern is if we get a child to make a phone call, I think we have one opportunity to help 
them. If we defer them anywhere, or if we try to delay them, or we try to answer another 
phone, there is a good chance we’re going to lose that child because they’re not going to call 
a second time. So that was our thought process. We were looking for one solid number where 
they can get help.  
 
Chairman Rust: It’s at a state level that I’m not sure it will reach the child. We didn’t think it 
should take that long for somebody to find where the relevant numbers might be to call. You 
can send it out electronically, somebody can print it off and put it on a bulletin board and 
you’d now have the chance of some child in a desperate situation to make a call. I don’t think 
this is going to help a child for a while. If you’re looking at the immediate, I’m worried about 
this. 
 
Representative Heinert: Well then I would be back to my original comments, Chairman, you 
and I need to meet with the AG and the superintendent of public instruction and we need 
further conversations. 
 
Representative Hager: I was trying to remember which bill this reminded me of and it was 
HB 1262. We came up with having a behavioral health resource coordinator so these kinds 
of tasks would be what we’d have them do. This is a duty designated to them to be putting 
this out. That’s how we were structuring separate bill numbers. We have two hands that aren’t 
seeing each other.  
 
Chairman Rust: We killed a bill and a week later, you guys threw out our bill and took yours 
that we threw out earlier, and put that back in. Whether that was the intention, I don’t know, 
but that’s the appearance. The other level is the concern and the bill sponsor talked to me 
between yesterday and today about. My concern is the child in a desperate situation, 
probably won’t go to a counselor or teacher, but would if they saw a number to pick up a line 
and call. I agree in amending that, we kind of got away from the student to the schools’ 
awareness and safety. Maybe I’m afraid of a weapon on a playground, as opposed to 
concerned about my welfare. I have two parents that aren’t in touch with reality and I need 
help or maybe in a dangerous situation. 
 
Representative Hoverson: Through this, it seems to me that while I completely agree that 
it needs to be simple, but at some point, there will have to be some sort of contact with an 
adult that is designated or trained and that some thought would be in that and would that be 
back to what she said. I don’t think it’s quite as simple as we’d like. 
 
 
Chairman Rust: Ends Conference Committee discussion on SB 2186. 
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Senator Rust called the conference committee for SB 2186 to order. Roll call was taken and 
Reps. Heinert, Hager and Hoverson and Sens. Rust, Fors and Marcellais were present. 
 
Senator Rust: When we left the conference committee at the last meeting, we were talking 
about a number to call and we agreed to Representative Heinert and I (Senator Rust) were 
going to talk to Superintendent Baesler and the Attorney General. We did both of those. We 
followed the directive. Also in the process, I was told we should talk to Senator Judy Lee who 
is on the Human Services Committee and knows a lot about these things. She referred me 
to a Cindy Miller on 211. Did I send everybody that email that I got? Okay. It appears to me 
that may be the number we want to use. We met with Superintendent Baesler and Robin 
Lang. Robin, would you come up to the microphone? We don’t take testimony, but we do 
take information at these committee meetings.  
 
(2:31) Robin Lang, Asst. Director for Safe and Healthy Schools, Department of Public 
Instruction: I am bringing forward a little information today. I don’t have any written 
testimony, however, I could provide you the information I have. I did a little research on 211. 
The 211 Help Line was established about fifty years ago in the Cass/Clay area. In 2010, they 
began to serve the entire state of ND. They are a 24/7 hotline. They are the only one that 
exists and the call center is located in Fargo and it is answered locally. They have a lot of 
resources – over 5,500 and they take about 51,000 calls a year from ND, including calls from 
students. I found that very insightful. They did start the texting option in 2018 because our 
youth really do prefer this option. Another interesting bit of data that lends to the richness of 
this system, is that it does have the language translation services. If someone calls and does 
not speak English, they are able to quickly identify that and get them the language they need. 
They do provide a lot of services for centers that have hours – such as 8:00 to 5:00 – so, if a 
center is closed at 5:00 pm, they can provide those services. They are currently providing 
that for the rape and crisis center, military family support, all of the counseling centers for the 
local ND universities and even some of our local Human Service Centers. When they call at 
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5:00 pm, the community can call into the 211 number and the system supports them with all 
their needs. Another factor is that if we train our youth in using 211, it will lead to adulthood 
as well. They do answer the national suicide prevention hot line for all of ND and several of 
the Minnesota counties. One of the programs they offer is a suicide follow-up. If there is an 
individual that is admitted for suicide for an attempt or ideation, when they are released from 
the hospital or clinic, 211 follows up with them. Depending on the need of that person, 
depends on the length of time they follow up. Their staff has extensive training – they are 
trained in child protection – in fact, they just finished that last week. They are trained by the 
military for those types of resources. The staff has gone through applied suicide prevention 
intervention training, mental health, first aid and just finished with the Child Advocacy Center 
training. They are very well trained. One of the things we talked about was the texting for our 
youth and kids – right now, their system is where they have to text your zip code. We talked 
about that might be a barrior. A very young student – even our middle or high school students 
move a lot – and my not know their zip code. That might be a barrier to reach the services 
that they need. We worked with the national 211 service and we were able to change that 
yesterday and hopefully, it will meet you liking. The kids are able to now text NDKID. When 
they reach that national texting data base or that center, they will route them back to ND. 
That has taken the barrier away. I also wanted to share a couple of highlights that Cindy 
shared with me. She said a few weeks ago that they received a call from a girl that was in a 
bathroom stall and she had taken some pills and she was now nervous. She was worried 
that she was going to complete the suicide attempt and that is not what she wanted. She was 
in the stall because she wanted some privacy. They were able to get her help and work 
through the process. That really speaks to that our kids really want the texting option. They 
want that privacy. The bathroom stall is one of the common areas where we place that poster. 
Another thing we talked about was really normalizing looking for health and the use of 211 
from youth to adulthood. Red River High School in Grand Forks has their students call – they 
bring the phone up, put it on conference call and call 211. The students talk about the 
services and they can ask questions. It takes that fear away. The students always worry – is 
this like 911? That is a couple of things that were very informational to me. They are working 
on some kid friendly posters. Right now, they have a text to tip or text line that they could text 
their zip code to. The group will redo this poster and making it more kid friendly, so they will 
have a couple of different options, but they do have resources on theory web site that we can 
provide to schools. They did an outreach to schools in October when they started the texting. 
They did a follow-up survey about how schools felt about the information. They did not 
receive what they felt was very good feedback because people seemed to be unaware of the 
option. They shared that they were a little frustrated that they weren’t sure who in the schools 
to seed that information to – do you just it to the school secretary, principal, school board – 
they weren’t just really sure. They were very excited to have partners that could get it in the 
hands of the people that need it. I know there was another bill that was passed by both the 
House and the Senate that talked about establishing that behavioral health resource 
coordinator and I think that will be a perfect fit for this type of information. That way, we will 
have one person receiving it and getting it out to those in the school that need it.  
 
(9:28) Senator Rust: Any questions for Robin? Thank you Robin. We met with the Attorney 
General. Representative Heinert, would you talk about that? 
 
Representative Heinert: As Senator Rust said, we did meet with the Attorney General and 
the version of 2186 that the House has passed out – the .05000 bill. He did express an 
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interest to keep some of this language in the bill simply because they do need a section of 
the law that says they can seek grants, accept gifts – donations for sources to carry out these 
kind of events that we are talking about here to create posters, create other programs for 
schools and students and those kind of things. I believe that we are probably going to end 
up with some form of a hybrid here – Senator Rust?  
 
(10:46) Senator Rust: I think what we want to do here is to do an amendment for this bill. 
The amendment would probably have two sections – Section 1 dealing with the role of the 
superintendent of public instruction developing something here for schools. I am hesitant to 
put 211 in a bill, but rather to have them disseminate some information to schools. I would 
think that information could be sent to schools, schools could just run it off and post it. I don’t 
know why it would have to be some kind of a mass mailing or something like that when in 
today’s world you can print things off pretty easily. Then the superintendent could direct 
schools to post that information. Section 2 would be the .05000 version. We will take those 
two and meld them into one. We have not done that yet, because we needed more 
information which we got this morning and also, I was looking for a little bit of input from this 
group before we draft that amendment. If anybody has any thoughts or any comments or 
suggestions, the floor is all yours. Representative Holverson – you like it? Okay. 
Representative Hager. 
 
Representative Hager: I am still not thinking we are getting the language of line seven in 
both of them. I think we need to tone it up a little bit so it is student safety and crisis report 
and programs versus school – to me, school is building. I think that what we are doing is a 
little different than – (muffled). 
 
Senator Rust: You are looking at line seven? Making it student safety instead of school 
safety? 
 
Representative Hager: I like crisis reporting line, so I would take the Senate version and go 
“Student Safety and Crisis Reporting Program. Remove the word “School safety.” To me, 
that is a pretty significant one-word change, but I think it is getting more towards the mission 
as I understand the bill sponsors wanted it. We are actually doing what the outside of the 
school or inside of the school – the safety of our children attending school. I would suggest 
that we make a little minor change language.  
 
Senator Rust: I am not sure I like the “crisis reporting” I don’t know if I like the word 
“reporting.” I don’t know if this as much reporting as much as it is a call or crisis information 
program – probably?  
 
Representative Hager: Or awareness – we have awareness (muffled). 
 
Senator Rust: Or awareness.  
 
Representative Hager: My focus – okay, there are two sections. Maybe that does –  
 
Representative Heinert: I believe we are talking about two sections, so I think the language 
in the current SB 2186 .03000, if we change “school” to “student” safety, as Representative 
Hager is presenting, the rest of it is okay and on the .05000 bill section two, the student safety 
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and crisis program – change the word school to student and then eliminate reporting. I think 
we need to leave the confidentiality of records and continuation of appropriation language in 
there.  
 
Senator Rust: Would you change that school to student or – 
 
Representative Heinert: Yes, “student safety and crisis program in section two. 
Confidentiality of records, continuation of appropriations.” Is how I think it should be read.  
 
Senator Rust: Any other suggestions? Any other things to come before the committee? My 
thinking would be that I will be going to Legislative Council and have them draft it today and 
get us back on the list and have us come back one more time and get this out of here.  
 
The Conference Committee on SB 2186 was adjourned.  
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Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-Rust;  Att. #2-Rust 

 

Senator Rust called the conference committee for SB 2186 to order. Roll call was taken and 
Reps. Heinert, Hager and Sens. Rust, Fors and Marcellais were present. 
Representative Hoverson was absent. 
 

Senator Rust: (See Att. #s 1 & 2) We will reconvene the Conference Committee on SB 
2186. I have handed out an amendment and the Christmas tree version. This amendment 
(19.0714.03005) that I’ve handed out is really very, very close to what we had agreed upon 
when we left last time with one exception. That is that Representative Owens came to me 
and while I’m not sure it is a problem, I did agree with him. We removed the words “and 
helplines” because the bill says that the superintendent of public instruction shall create – no 
problem in information, no problem with resources, but “shall create a helpline” – that can be 
a pretty expensive, time consuming thing. So, we removed that portion. Essentially, what it 
does is has the superintendent of public instruction in coordination with other relevant 
agencies shall create information resources for students regarding appropriate school safety 
and awareness. They shall discriminate that to schools to be posted in commons areas. 
Then, the other thing we left when we made a new section, was to include the Attorney 
General in those provisions. Representative Heinert and I met with both of those people, they 
are in agreement. Can I get a motion that the House recede from its amendments and SB 
2186 be amended as follows?  
 

Representative Hager: So moved. 
 

Senator Marcellais: Second. 
 

Roll Call vote: 5 Yeas; 0 Nays; 1 Absent. 
 

Motion Carries. Senator Rust will carry the bill in the Senate; Representative Heinert 
will carry the bill in the House.  
 

Senator Rust: I believe our work is done. We are adjourned.  
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